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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

DERRICK SATCHELL, KALINI BOYKIN,
VALERIE BROWN, RICK GONZALES,
CYNTHIA GUERRERO, RACHEL HUTCHINS,
TYRONE MERRIT, KELVIN SMITH, SR., and
KEN STEVENSON, on behalf of themselves and
all others similarly situated,

Plaintiffs,
VS.

FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION, d/b/a
FedEx Express, a Delaware Corporation,

Defendant.

Case No.: €03-2659 SI; C 03-2878 SI
CLASS ACTION

[Proposed] Consent Decree
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L INTRODUCTION

As a result of negotiations supervised by a mediator, the parties have reached a voluntary
agreement that is contained in this Consent Decree.

II. LITIGATION BACKGROUND

A. The Satchell Litigation

On December 12, 2002, Plaintiffs filed the Satchell case in the Alameda County Superior Court
alleging violations of the California Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA) and the California
Equal Pay Act, and asserting various common law causes of action. The Complaint was brought on
behalf of a putative class of women and minority individuals in California who alleged that defendant
FedEx Express (Defendant) and related entities and individual managers discriminate against women
and minorities on the basis of sex, race, color, and/or national origin, with respect to job assignment,
compensation, promotion and other terms and conditions of employment, by maintaining a system for
making decisions about promotions, assignments, transfers, discipline and compensation which is
excessively subjective and which has had a disparate impact on non-Caucasian employees, and through
which defendants discriminate against women and minority employees by denying them the same
opportunities for job assignments, upward mobility and compensation afforded to similarly situated
Caucasian and male employees.

On May 18, 2003, Plaintiffs filed their First Amended Complaint eliminating the statutory
claims of discrimination on the basis of sex, as well as several of the common law claims, and
dropping the individual defendants named in the original complaint.

On June 6, 2003, Defendants removed the case to the Northern District of California pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332 and 1441(b).

B. The Caldwell Litigation

On June 19, 2003, Plaintiffs filed the Caldwell case in the Northern District of California
alleging violations of 42 U.S.C. § 1981 and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964. Eight named
plaintiffs brought the Complaint on behalf of a putative class of African American and Latino

individuals and made similar allegations to those in the Satchell complaint, but asserted that

1
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Defendants maintained their discriminatory policies on a nationwide basis. On June 25, 2003,
Plaintiffs filed their First Amended Complaint in the Caldwell case, adding as class representatives six
of the Satchell plaintiffs, all African American or Latino, and twenty-four additional named plaintiffs.
In addition, the First Amended Complaint asserted claims under FEHA on behalf of class members
who worked for Defendant in California.

C. The Consolidated Proceedings

On September 25, 2003, the Court issued an order relating the Caldwell and Satchell cases, and

on November 13, 2003, pursuant to a stipulation of the parties, the cases were consolidated for all

purposes.
Plaintiffs’ First Consolidated Amended Complaint was filed on November 12, 2003. The

Consolidated Complaint dropped all plaintiffs with claims arising outside the State of California,
retained nine named class representatives, and dropped all defendants except FedEx Express. The

named plaintiffs were Derrick Satchell, Kalini Boykin, Valerie Brown, Rick Gonzales, Cynthia

Guerrero, Rachel Hutchins, Daniel Sherman, Kelvin Smith, Sr., and Ken Stevenson.1 In addition, the

Consolidated Complaint limited its claims and the scope of the putative class to Defendant’s Western
Region. The Consolidated Complaint asserted claims on behalf of two classes, a class of hourly
employees and a class of salaried low-level managerial employees.

Throughout the first half of 2004, the parties conducted discovery relating to class certification
issues. Plaintiffs took the depositions of approximately 43 30(b)(6) designees and managers.
Defendant deposed the eight class representatives in the consolidated action.

On September 11, 2004, Plaintiffs filed their motion for class certification. Plaintiffs supported
their motion with, inter alia, declarations of class representatives and putative class members, excerpts
of deposition testimony from FedEx Express managers, documents obtained from FedEx Express
during discovery, and three declarations from expert witnesses. Among other evidence, Plaintiffs

presented an expert analysis of Defendant’s “Basic Skills Tests” (BST) passage of which was a

! On March 19, 2004, plaintiff Daniel Sherman voluntarily dismissed his claims without prejudice.

2
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prerequisite to advancement to certain positions at FedEx Express. Plaintiffs’ expert sought to show
that the BST was not job related and had disproportionately excluded African Americans and Latinos
from opportunities for advancement based on factors unrelated to their ability to perform. Defendant
vigorously opposed Plaintiffs’ class certification motion. The parties filed numerous briefs and
supplemental briefs.

While the class certification motion was pending, Defendant separately sought summary

judgment as to six of the named plaintiffs,2 asserting that there was insufficient evidence in the record
to support their claims. These motions were litigated throﬁghout the fall of 2004 and winter of 2005.
Plaintiffs moved to compel discovery, and sought relief from the motions pending further discovery
under Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(%).

On January 19, 2005, the Court heard argument on the motion for class certification, some of
the motions for summary judgment, and the rule 56(f) motion.

On March 21, 2005, the Court granted Plaintiffs’ motion to compel and Rule 56(f) motion.

On September 28, 2005, the Court issued orders granting class certification and denying
Defendant’s motions for Summary Judgment pending further discovery. In its class certification order,
the court certified two classes:

1. A “Minority Employee Class” consisting of all African-American and Latino Handlers,

Freight Handlers, Material Handlers, Checker-Sorters, Customer Service Agents, Couriers,

Swing Drivers, Ramp Transport Drivers, Ramp Area Drivers, Shuttle Drivers, Dangerous

Goods Agents, Information Agents, Operations Agents, Ramp Agents, Service Assurance
Agents, Truck Control Agents, Trace Representatives, Input Auditors, Team Leaders, and

Dispatchers, working in defendant’s Western Regi0n3, who are or were employed during the
class period, who allege claims of employment discrimination in violation of Title VII of the

;Det;tlandant did not seek summary judgment as to the claims of Plaintiffs Derrick Satchell and Rachel
utchins.

3 As set forth in Footnote 6 of the court’s class certification order, the Western Region is comprised of
Alaska, Arizona, California, Colorado, Hawaii, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, Oregon, part of
Texas, Utah, Washington, and Wyoming. From 1999 to on or about November 2003, the Western
Region was comprised of only six states: California, Hawaii, parts of Washington, Oregon, Alaska,
and Nevada.

3
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Civil Rights Act of 1964 (both disparate impact and disparate treatment), 42 U.S.C. § 1981, and
for those class members working, or who worked, in California, the California Fair
Employment and Housing Act; and

2. An “African-American Lower-Level Manager Class” consisting of all African-American
Operations Managers working in defendant’s Western Region during the class period who
allege claims of employment discrimination in violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (both disparate impact and disparate treatment), 42 U.S.C. § 1981, and for those class
members working, or who worked, in California, the California Fair Employment and Housing
Act.

The court certified Plaintiffs’ Title VII, § 1981, and FEHA claims for class treatment, and set forth the
following liability periods for each claim for each certified class: for Plaintiffs’ Title VII claims, a
class period beginning June 20, 2002 for the Minority Employee Class and a class period beginning
July 10, 2002 for the African-American Lower Manager Class; for Plaintiffs’ FEHA claims, a class
period beginning June 13, 2001 for the Minority Employee Class and a class period beginning July 31,
2001 for the African-American Lower Manager Class; for Plaintiffs’ claims under Section 1981, a
class period beginning October 17, 1999 for both classes with respect to compensation claims; a class
period beginning October 17, 1999 for promotion claims by class members alleging denial of
promotion from one permanent hourly position to another permanent hourly position; a class period
beginning January 1, 2002 for promotion claims by class members alleging denial of promotion from
casual positions to permanent positions; and a class period beginning January 1, 2002 for promotion
claims by class members alleging denial of promotion from permanent hourly positions to permanent
salaried positions. In addition, the Court instructed Plaintiffs to amend the complaint to add a class
representative who had failed the BST.

On October 12, 2005, Plaintiffs filed their Second Consolidated Amended Complaint. In
compliance with the Court’s class certification order, the Complaint added Tyrone Merritt, who had
failed the BST, as a class representative of those who had failed the BST.

On October 26, 2005, Defendant filed its Answer to the Complaint, denying all allegations of
discrimination and disparate impact.

Defendant sought to appeal the Court’s class certification order to the Ninth Circuit Court of

Appeals pursuant to Fed. Rule Civ. P. 23(f), and, on October 14, 2005, sought a stay of the district

4
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court proceedings pending the outcome of that appeal. The Court denied the motion for a stay on
November 23, 2005. The Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals denied the Rule 23(f) petition on December
12, 2005.

Throughout the end of 2005 and all of 2006 the parties conducted discévery concerning the
merits of Plaintiffs’ individual and class claims. The discovery was broad, extensive, and thorough.
The discovery included requests for production of documents, interrogatories, contention
interrogatories, requests for admissions, disclosures pursuant to Rule 26, and extensive expert
discovery.

Discovery included the production of extensive documents from Plaintiffs and Defendant
including production of computerized personnel and payroll data from 1997 through 2006, relating to
Defendant’s Western Region. In addition to the volumes of computer data, several hundreds of
thousands of pages of documents were produced.

Deposition discovery was extensive. Between them, the Parties took approximately 193
depositions, including the Class Representatives, class members, and FedEx Express managers.
Pursuant to Rule 30(b)(6), Class Counsel deposed Defendant through its désignated representatives on
a variety of topics, including Defendant’s (1) personnel policies, (2) evaluations, (3) training,

(4) computerized records, (5) retention of documents, (6) the BST, and (7) the reasons for employment
actions against specified class members.

In June, September, and December 2006, and January 2007, the parties served and filed expert
reports, rebuttal expert reports, and surrebuttal expert reports. Plaintiffs submitted expert reports from
Dr. Richard Drogin, a statistician; Dr. Nita French, an industrial organizational psychologist;

Dr. William Bielby, a sociologist; Dr. Anthony Greenwald, a social psychologist, Dr. Sheldon Zedeck,
an industrial organizational psychologist; and Dr. Marc Bendick, a labor economist. Defendant
submitted expert reports from Dr. Mary Baker, a labor economist and statistician, Dr. Michael

Campion, an industrial organizational psychologist; Dr. Philip Tetlock, a psychologist; Dr. Nancy

5
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Tippins, an industrial and organizational psychologist, and Jan Duffy, a management practices
specialist. There was extensive expert discovery.

On September 19, 2006, the Court granted Plaintiffs’ motion to amend the class certification
order with respect to the scope of the promotion claims. On November 30, 2006, Plaintiffs filed a
Statement Regarding Promotions Claims to be litigated.

On November 14, 2006, the Court granted Plaintiffs’ motion for leave to file a Third
Consolidated Amended Complaint. This Complaint eliminated the Class FEHA claim and broke the
Title VII cause of action into separate claims for disparate impact and disbarate treatment. -

In the Winter of 2006, the parties exchanged lists of trial exhibits. The parties also exchanged
proposed jury verdict forms. In December 2006 and January 2007, the parties briefed numerous
motions in limine.

The Plaintiffs have vigorously prosecuted this case, and Defendant has vigorously contested it.
All pretrial discovery was completed, numerous pre-trial motions were ruled upon, and the parties
were prepared for trial. As a result, the parties were able to assess reliably the relative merits of the
claims of the Plaintiffs and the certified Classes, and of Defendant’s defenses.

At the instruction of the Court, the parties participated in ‘negotiations with the assistance of an
experienced mediator: Hunter Hughes of Atlanta, Georgia. The parties had face-to-face sessions in
April 2006, December 2006, February 2007, and March 2007. Under the supervision of the mediator,
these negotiations have been conducted at arms length and without collusion. These efforts resulted in
an agreement to settle this action. The terms of the parties’ agreement are contained in this Consent
Decree.

The parties agree that the formal and informal discovery conducted in this action — the
depositions taken by both sides, the documents produced, the expert witness reports, and the

information exchanged during mediation — are sufficient to assess reliably the merits of the respective

6
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